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TITLE: Global Master Custodian and Related Services
ADDENDUM NO. 2
To All Offerors:

Attached are written questions received in response to this RFP.  These questions, along with the State's response, become an official amendment to this RFP.

All other terms of the subject "Request for Proposal" are to remain as previously stated.

Acknowledgment of Addendum:

The offeror for this solicitation must acknowledge receipt of this addendum.  This page must be submitted at the time set for the proposal opening or the proposal may be disqualified from further consideration.

I acknowledge receipt of Addendum No. 2
Signed: ___________________________________

Company Name: ____________________________

Date: ______________________

Sincerely,
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Rick Dorvall
Contracts Officer

	Question Number
	Page Number
	Section Number
	Questions & Answers for RFP #14-2750V  

	1. 
	13
	3.1 h.
	Q. Please provide additional information regarding specific requirements needed to meet your request regarding utilizing bidder’s systems resources as a complement to Board business continuity/disaster recovery. 

Response: The MBOI’s reasonable access to a bidder’s systems, resources, and personnel (across various product areas and functions) for account-related matters during a period of time when the Helena, MT-based MBOI and its operations is sought as a component of contingency planning. The MBOI would not identify other obligations related to this requirement.

Bidder should overview how it has kept up with data security; data back-up and data interface with clients even if there are disruptions such as weather events, systems going down and the like.

	2. 
	13
	3.1 f
	Q. Regarding complete history required, please define what information is required to be saved.

Response: Please see Section 3.3, beginning on Page 15 of the RFP, for the investment and accounting reports required and Section 3.8.1 on Page 24 of the RFP for the performance measurement data required.  In addition, any legal documents entered into between the Contractor and MBOI are to be retained.  Please see Montana Code Annotated Title 2, Chapter 6, Part 2 regarding Montana Public Records Management law. http://leg.mt.gov/bills/mca_toc/2_6_2.htm.

	3. 
	16
	3.3 g) iv.
	Q. For item regarding assets held in security form elsewhere i.e. prime brokerage, please provide record layout for file feed.

Response: Currently, State Street Global acts as our prime broker so we do not have a need for a file feed and do not have a record layout.

	4. 
	17
	3.3 s)
	Q. Offeror will be required to feed class action data to the Board’s litigation monitoring providers.  Please provide a list of who the Board uses for litigation monitoring. 

Response: Currently incumbent custodial bank automatically files paperwork for class action lawsuits.  MBOI uses two law firms to monitor possible actions outside of class actions.

	5. 
	18
	3.3.2 d)
	Q. Please provide samples of the Investment Pool distribution and participant activity statements.

Response: The participant activity statements can be found on our website at the following link. http://investmentmt.com/Investments/nonstipparticpant.mcpx.

	6. 
	21
	3.6
	Q. The following statement is made: “If a transition in providers occurs from State Street Securities Finance to Offeror’s affiliated lending agent, the Offeror will facilitate the transition of the lending program, which may include the directed purchase at cost of illiquid assets whose fair market values are set at prices below cost using the proceeds of new loans.” 

Please provide specific details on each holding (e.g. security ID, description, market value, amortized cost, unrealized loss, etc.) as we may be required to advance monies and purchase on your behalf during transition, fund with new loans, and carry the liability. Also, do you plan to reimburse any collateral deficiency with your current provider before converting, or have a remediation plan (e.g. allocation earnings to reduce any collateral deficiencies) in place and intend on transferring assets in-kind?

Response: Should a transition in providers occur, the MBOI has identified this as a transition item to be addressed. It is possible that the MBOI might choose to liquidate the collateral portfolio (thus terminating the securities lending program prior to transition) or to seek to have a managed transition whereby a directed purchase would occur. The MBOI currently participates in the Quality D Liquidity/Duration Pools for pension trust fund securities lending reinvestment and the Quality Trust Liquidity/Duration Pools for non-pension trust fund securities lending reinvestment. Respondents should discuss their process and requirements in a transition.  At this time we have not made a decision on any potential remediation and the extent to which in-kind transfers might occur and the process by which any collateral deficiencies are resolved. While we are not providing specific details of holdings at this time, we will work closely with a successful respondent in advance in providing these details once a transition plan has been identified.

	7. 
	21
	3.6
	Q. Please provide your current securities lending cash collateral investment guidelines?

Response: Cash collateral is now invested in commingled portfolios that adhere to 2a-7 investment limitations with respect to all new investments made, though are not regulated as such. 

	8. 
	21
	3.6
	Q. Are you willing to accept non-cash in addition to cash collateral? If so, what forms of non-cash are and should we assume are acceptable (e.g. US Govt only, all OECD debt, equities, etc.)

Response: Acceptable Forms of Collateral
· U.S. Cash; 

· Securities issued or guaranteed by the United States government or its agencies including Bonds, Bills and Notes;

· Agency Debentures including: Federal Farm Credit System (FFCS), Federal Home Loan Banks (FHLB), Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp. (FHLMC), Financing Corporation (FICO), Federal National Mortgage Assn. (FNMA), Tennessee Valley Authority (TVA), USPS (U.S. Postal Service);

· International Debentures including Asian Development Bank (ADBB), African Development Bank (AFDB), Inter-American Development Bank (IADB), International Finance Corp. (IFCO), and World Bank (WLDB); 

· Government National Mortgage Association (GNMA);

· Agency MBS, REMIC, & CMO;

· Private Label MBS & CMO (with rating of at least AA-/Aa3);

· Asset Backed Securities (with rating of at least AA-/Aa3);

· Corporate Bonds (with rating of at least AA-/Aa3);

· Commercial Paper (with rating of at least A1/P1);
· A minimum debt rating of AA-/Aa3 in the case of Corporate Bonds, Private Label MBS & CMO, and Asset Backed Securities and a minimum of A1/P1 in the case of Commercial Paper;

· G10 Sovereign Debt.

	9. 
	21
	3.6
	Q. Do you currently have any borrower or loan restrictions or caps on your lending activity?

Response: No, however we ask that borrower indemnification be provided by the custodial bank. If this is not provided then we would impose reasonable borrower restrictions and may also choose to adopt more strict collateral guidelines. 

	10. 
	23
	3.7.5
	Q. This section discusses the 498 participants in the STIP which are aggregated into 49 accounts in the securities accounting system but recorded individually in the participant accounting system.  Please describe the nature of the 49 accounts.  Are they separate share classes (multiclass structure)? What is the difference between the 49 accounts?

Response: STIP is set up as the cash vehicle for state agencies and local governments that wish to participate.  Most state agencies are not allowed to hold investments other than STIP, the 49 that are not aggregated have the ability to hold investments other than STIP and therefore have their own portfolios.

	11. 
	23
	3.7.5
	1. Please list the type of software platforms used for transfer agency services today including:

a) Transfer agent recordkeeping 

Transfer agent system is InvestTA (AKA PowerAgentTM by Envision Financial Systems).

b) IMAGE & Workflow 

i) Approximately how many images will need to be converted?

Reports, statements and transactions are submitted in txt or Excel format.  No conversion of images will be necessary.

c) Web Portal(s)

i) What types of transaction are supported?

Not currently using any web portals.

d) Data Repository and report writing

Reports provided by InvestTA include, transaction reports, trial balance, fair value and distribution.

e) Is investor data stored on any other platforms that will require conversion to the successor TA provider?

No.
2. For each of the funds please provide the number of open accounts, number of closed accounts and the fund CUSIP and SYMBOL.

See attachment Question #11 Response.  We do not have SYMBOLs for our pools.

3. How many years of transactional history are stored on the transfer agent application?

7.
4. Please provide average monthly processing volumes for the following transactions: New accounts, Subscriptions, Redemptions, Transfers, Account corrections/adjustments, Maintenances, Correspondence and Regular investments 

See attachment Question #11 Response for average subscriptions/redemptions. New accounts are mainly in the Short Term Investment Pool and are probably fewer than 25 annually.  Transfers, account corrections/adjustments, maintenances and correspondence happen infrequently.  

5. Please describe the call center information

Not applicable

a) Contact Management application

b) IVR/VRU application

i) Average monthly call volumes for Inbound and Outbound

ii) Average talk time

c) Hours of operation

6. Who is your current print and mail provider?

Not applicable, statements are provided on our website and all distributions are made by ACH

a) Please provide current monthly print volumes for statements, confirms and checks

b) Please provide a sample of statements, confirms and checks

c) Do you have any other types of investor reports?  If so, please provide a sample

d) Are digital imaging/PDF statement services required?

e) Are e-presentment services required?  If yes, what type of output will be required?

7. Is access to our transfer agency system for inquiry or transaction processing in your offices required?  Will access to shareholder images be required in your offices?  If yes, please indicate how many workstations will be required.  

MBOI does not currently have access to the participant (transfer agent) accounting system; however, as per Section 3.7.5 a), if requested, MBOI would like the ability to have direct on-line access.  Currently, account statements and reports are provided to us from the system.  The same is applicable to shareholder images.

8. Are data transmissions required?  If so please describe type and business need for both inbound and outbound transmissions. 

We submit daily transaction files for the Short Term Investment Pool for processing and ACH file creation and submission.  Additionally, the other investment pools may have monthly participant buy/sell transactions and distributions.

	12. 
	24
	3.8 e)
	Q. Public Fund Universe – Does Montana receive TUCS today?

Response: MBOI does not receive TUCS directly; however, the custodian provides a blended public fund universe consisting of TUCS data and its own proprietary public fund clients’ data.

	13. 
	25
	3.8 g)
	Q. Security Level Data – Please confirm to which third parties the security level data would be sent.

Response: There are two aspects to this question.  At this time MBOI utilizes two vendor products for portfolio analysis purposes; Factset for public equities and Wilshire Axiom for fixed income securities.  We ask that Offeror provide automated daily security holdings into these systems for holdings within all separate accounts, whether internally-managed (in the case of most of the fixed income portfolios) or externally-managed (in the case of all public equity portfolios and four fixed income portfolios).  We also expect the Offeror will provide look-through holdings data for all commingled equity funds held by the MBOI via its equity investment pools.  This entails receipt of aggregate fund holdings from the asset manager, and then creating a pro rata slice of these representing the MBOI’s holdings.  This data is then fed into Factset on a monthly basis.  Currently this involves ten (10) such commingled funds.

	14. 
	25
	3.8 i)
	Q. Please provide the total number of account composites required.

Response:
Total Large Cap Passive

Total Large Cap Domestic Active

Total Large Cap Domestic Active + Passive

Total Enhanced Index Managers

Total 130/30

Total Domestic Mid Cap

Total Domestic Small Cap

Total Intl Large Cap Passive

Total Intl Growth

Total Intl Value

Total Intl Small Cap



	15. 
	25
	3.8 k) and m)
	Q. Monthly Performance, Historical Data and Aggregates.  Please confirm if security level returns are required and at what frequency Daily or monthly.

Response: Security level returns are not required as part of the performance reporting duties.

	16. 
	26
	3.8.2 e)
	Q. Compliance Monitoring Tool – please confirm if you want daily compliance monitoring or monthly.  What level of compliance monitoring is supported today? Please provide a list of rules that would be monitored.

Response: Daily flagging of compliance violations is preferred. Currently we do not rely on the custodian to provide compliance monitoring. Though not a complete list, examples of rules would include:

· Cash level not in excess of 5% of account value (equity accounts)

· No below investment grade ratings of less than single-B (fixed income Core-plus accounts)

· Emerging market allocations within +/- 5% of index weighting within ACWI IMI ex-US index (international equity accounts)

· Market cap test for small or mid cap equities whereby individual holdings are flagged if they exceed a specified limit relative to the holdings of the benchmark index. (equity accounts) For example, no security is to exceed 1.5X the maximum market cap of the Russell Midcap Index.



	17. 
	26
	3.9
	Q. Paragraph one states that, “Should this RFP result in the selection a new custodian bank, Offeror must perform all procedures necessary…”  Are all procedures defined by non-incumbent or by the State of Montana?

Response: Procedures for transition would be a combination of advice and direction from State of Montana, its investment consultant, and new custodial bank.  Respondent must thoroughly address all items in Questionnaire I, Transition and Conversion, on Page 56 of the RFP.

	18. 
	54
	H. 3)
	Q. Please provide a list of benchmarks in place today.

Response: Please see Response #18 in the attached Excel spreadsheet.

	19. 
	54
	H. 7)
	Q. Please provide a list of third party vendors and consultants that custodian will feed and what applications they are using (ex. Factset, Wilshire).

Response: Systems utilized now that require custodial feeds include Factset (equities) and Wilshire Axiom (fixed income). The only consultant receiving data and requiring access to on-line data is the general investment consultant, R.V. Kuhns.

	20. 
	54
	H. 8)
	Q. Regarding reconciliation with external managers, please state if you want pre/post reconciliation.  At what frequency is reconciliation completed today?

Response: As specified in 3.8.1.f, reconciliation is currently provided on a monthly and quarterly basis and is performed on a post-close basis. Question H. 8) is an inquiry of provider capabilities and is structured to solicit information on various methodologies, provider capabilities, and the advantages of each such methodological approach.

	21. 
	57
	App A. Section 2.3
	Q. We understand that the hyperlinks within the RFP should provide detailed information about the State’s Investments. Is the link on page 59 http://investment.com/content/investments/docs/holdings/totalbyfund.pdf intended to reflect the entire assets for all the funds and that should be used to develop a securities lending revenue estimate?

This asset file appears to only be in a PDF file format.  Would you please provide an Excel file? Additionally, the asset list in the PDF does not contain security identifiers and reflects pools of equities instead of specific underlying securities, if actually lendable. Can we obtain an excel file with full security description, security identifier, market value, shares and country of issue? If this is not the proper file to be used in developing an estimate, please provide the link.

Response: Please see Response #21 in the attached Excel spreadsheet.

	22. 
	58 
	App A, 2.4
	Q. Please provide a list of the number of investment portfolios that the custodian would maintain that represent the internally managed accounts shown. Ie. For the 75% of the RFBP managed internally how many accounts does the custodian maintain.

Response: Please see Response #22 in the attached Excel spreadsheet.

	23. 
	60
	App A. 2.4
	Q. For the International Pool (MTIP) please provide a breakdown on the market value and the transactions by country for all separate accounts in excel.

Response: Please see Response #23 in the attached Excel spreadsheet.

	24. 
	60 - 63
	App A. 2.4
	Q. Please send us the FX data tables on pages 60-63 in an Excel file. Those numbers are currently embedded as image files.

Response: Please see Response #24 in the attached Excel spreadsheet.

	25. 
	64/74
	App. A

2.7 a) and 4.2.9
	Q. States that Board Investment Staff executes trades for FI Securities using Board Financial Asset and Investment Management system. Please describe the interface, provide a sample, how the trades are then sent to State Street today for settlement. Is there a daily direct interface to SSB currently in place? 

Response: Fixed income securities that are traded internally are input via the Bloomberg trade order management system and are transmitted electronically directly to the custodian.  These happen on a daily basis after the trade occurs and it is internally cross-checked and then released.

	26. 
	19/64
	3.3.3 iii) and iv) and App. A. 2.8
	Q. Please provide samples of the templates for the Commercial and in-state loan programs, and Direct Real Estate sent to State Street from the Oracle database and confirm how they are sent i.e. fax, automated feed etc.

Response: See attachment Question #26 Response showing samples of the templates.  They are sent via email in Excel format.

	27. 
	64
	App A.

2.9 a.
	Q. References an on-line circuit.  Please confirm if you have SSB Horizon accounting system resident in your office and if you require the current bidders to provide you the same access to their accounting system or if you use the bidder’s front-end online system to access the custodian’s information?

Response: We do have SSB Horizon in our office.  We use SSB Horizon to access real time transactions on SSB.  If offerors front-end online system provides real time information that would be sufficient.  

	28. 
	70
	App. C 
	Q. Base Short3 Gain/Loss Amount.  Is “3” a typo?

Response: Yes

	29. 
	74
	App D.

4.2.11
	Q. This item refers to a demonstration of the offeror’s accounting systems and download capabilities…that permit Board staff the ability to: a.) create an investment pool including purchase and sell participant units in investment pool, b.) distribute and process pool participant income distributions,  etc.  Please explain if the staff members are accessing SSB’s Horizon system and making these entries or reviewing this information in the on-line system.

Response: Staff accesses SSB Horizon to review the information.

	30. 
	
	
	Q. Has Request for Proposal been issued due to a procurement requirement that you put the business out to bid periodically? 

Response: Yes, state law requires rebidding no less than once each seven years.

	31. 
	
	
	Q. Are there any current or past service issues with your custodian, SSB that are not being met? Please list and describe.

Response: No, there are no material unmet needs currently from SSB.

	32. 
	14
	3/3.2a
	Q. Please provide further definition of ‘other investments’. Please define anticipated frequency of this settlement type and any markets in particular. 

Response: “Other Investments” is listed in the context of providing “A comprehensive system of selecting Subcustodians, evaluating and monitoring their internal control structures, performance and financial condition will be in place (which shall take into consideration factors including those required or contemplated by Securities Exchange Commission (SEC) Regulation 17-f for custody of assets), in seeking to coordinate proper settlement for all securities and other investments.” [emphasis added]. 

“Other Investments” that might not be in security form could include non-security investments for which safekeeping and custodial services might be provided – examples (although not currently held) could include physical commodities. In this context, there are currently no “other investments”. 

	33. 
	22
	3.6.4
	Q. Does Montana or its managers utilize prime brokerage services to facilitate the self-borrowing for its 130/30 portfolios?

Response: The prime brokerage services needed to support these portfolios are provided via the enhanced custody model of the incumbent custodial bank. 

	34. 
	21
	3.6.1
	Q. Can you please provide a copy of the current investment guidelines for the cash collateral pool

Response: Cash collateral is now invested in commingled portfolios that adhere to 2a-7 investment limitations with respect to all new investments made, though are not regulated as such.

	35. 
	21
	3.6.1
	Q. Can you please provide a list of lendable assets, in Excel format with the following fields; Security ID, Market Value, Shares

Response: See Response #35 in the attached Excel spreadsheet.

	36. 
	21
	3.6.1
	Q. Please provide a list of the impaired assets from the current cash collateral investment pool.

Response: Should a transition in providers occur, the MBOI has identified this as a transition item to be addressed.  It is possible the MBOI might choose to liquidate the collateral portfolio (thus terminating the securities lending program prior to transition) or to seek to have a managed transition whereby a directed purchase would occur. The MBOI currently participates in the Quality D Liquidity/Duration Pools for pension trust fund securities lending reinvestment and the Quality Trust Liquidity/Duration Pools for non-pension trust fund securities lending reinvestment. Respondents should discuss their process and requirements in a transition.  At this time, we have not made a decision on any potential remediation and the extent to which in-kind transfers might occur and the process by which any collateral deficiencies are resolved. While we are not providing specific details of holdings at this time, we will work closely with a successful respondent in advance in providing these details once a transition plan has been identified.

	37. 
	14
	3.2
	Q. Does Montana have a Defined Contribution plan?  If so, can you please provide: AUC, current record keeper, number of participants

Response: Yes, but these plans and the associated assets are managed by the Montana Public Employees Retirement Administration and do not currently, or are they expected to fall under the scope of the MBOI custodial contract.

	38. 
	12
	3.1 (b)
	Q. Please describe the current client service model for Montana.  Is there a single point of contact or does Montana staff contact product experts directly?

Response: Contact is between many MBOI staff members and the custodial bank depending on the matter at hand.

	39. 
	14
	3.2
	Q. Would our firm be required to post collateral to secure any cash balance held under the custody relationship and/or be subject to any qualified public depository rules (or any similar rules) in effect in the State of Montana?

Response: The intention is not to have idle cash balances and not have a depository relationship, but a custodial one.  Montana law does require collateral for bank deposits.

	40. 
	14
	3.2
	Q. Do the State of Montana investment pools include proceeds of a Municipal Security offering, specifically, a Municipal Bond or Pension Obligation Bond? 

If yes, when were the bond proceeds deposited into any fund?  

If it is currently known and public information, is the State of Montana Board of Investments planning to issue such a bond for the purpose of funding any of its investment pools / mutual funds?

Response: State of Montana bond proceeds are deposited in the State’s Treasurer’s Fund, which mostly utilizes the Short Term Investment Pool, or the bond proceeds are invested in longer term bonds.  No pension bonds have been issued or are contemplated.  The MBOI has no plans to issue bonds related to its investment holdings, pension or otherwise.  The MBOI, under separate State statute, does issue bonds for its municipal lending program; however, those proceeds are outside of the custodial banking relationship.

	41. 
	
	Appendix F
	· Contractual terms governing the Services;

· Need for separate agreements governing global custody, securities lending and other ancillary services  

Q. We understand that the ultimate agreement will include those terms of Appendix F, and other terms of the RFP, that are agreed by the Contractor and State. However, the Scope of Services described in the RFP and referenced in Appendix F, must also be governed by our firm’s standard contractual terms relating to global custody, securities lending and associated services. These terms are set forth, respectively, in our Global Custody Agreement (“GCA”), Securities Lending Agreement (“SLA”) and associated service riders (including riders to the GCA which cover accounting services and investment performance and analytics) which are enclosed herewith for review. 

As in all cases where our firm acts as custodian and lending agent, the ultimate contract must be compromised of separate contractual documents covering global custody (GCA), securities lending (SLA) and associated services (applicable riders) along with the agreed terms contained in the RFP.

Response: The State of Montana, Board of Investments, may agree to additional contractual terms required by the successful offeror if those terms do not conflict with Montana statute, administrative Rule, do not significantly increase the liability of the state, and are industry standard requirement. If the state cannot reach agreement with the highest scoring offeror, the state reserves the right to disqualify the offeror and award a contract to the next highest scoring offeror.

	42. 
	
	General Note
	· Contractual terms governing the Services;

Lien and set off rights

Q. Our enclosed contractual documents contain various requirements relating to the services anticipated under this RFP, including, but not limited to, lien and set off rights. Please be advised that, in its capacity as custodian and separately, as lending agent, our firm requires a first priority security interest in, and lien on, all cash, financial assets and any other property held for the customer, as security for any and all liabilities of the customer to our firm or its affiliates.  In addition, our firm must have a contractual right to set-off against any liabilities of the customer to our firm or its affiliates. Our complete lien and set off provisions are contained in our enclosed GCA and SLA.

Response: The State of Montana, Board of Investments, may agree to additional contractual terms required by the successful offeror if those terms do not conflict with Montana statute, administrative Rule, do not significantly increase the liability of the state, and are industry standard requirement. If the state cannot reach agreement with the highest scoring offeror, the state reserves the right to disqualify the offeror and award a contract to the next highest scoring offeror.

	43. 
	
	General Note
	· Contractual terms governing the Services;

Liability regarding Subcustodians

Q. We would like to point out our standard of care and liability with respect to the use of Subcustodians (as defined in our GCA).  

Our firm has a network of Subcustodians across the globe. In cases where our customers require our firm to hold foreign assets through our agent bank network, our firm will only be liable for direct losses incurred by the Customer that result from: 

(i) the failure by a Subcustodian to use reasonable care in the provision of custodial services by it in accordance with the standards prevailing in the relevant market or from the fraud or willful misconduct of such Subcustodian in the provision of custodial services by it; or, 

(ii) the insolvency of any affiliated Subcustodian bank (i.e., one that is an affiliate of our firm). Our firm does not accept liability for the insolvency of our firm any Subcustodian which is not a branch or an affiliated Subcustodian. Further, our firm reserves the right to add, replace or remove Subcustodians with prompt notice thereof to the customer. 

Please see our enclosed GCA for complete provisions relating to the use of Subcustodians and Securities Depositories.

Response: State cannot accept.

	44. 
	
	Appendix F – 4.1
	· Warranty of services;

Standard of reasonable care

Q. Our firm cannot agree to this warranty provision as drafted. We stand behind our service obligations in the contract, however, our services would be provided in accordance with and subject to our standard of reasonable care. 

As per our GCA and SLA, our firm will use reasonable care in performing our obligations under the contract.  Our firm will not be in violation of the contract with respect to any matter as to which it has satisfied its obligation of reasonable care.

Response: State will agree to remove.

	45. 
	
	Appendix F – Article 5; 5.3, 5.5
	· Fee schedule;

· Terms relating to payment of Contractor’s fees and expenses  

Q. With respect to custody services, we typically provide a separate fee agreement which details all services and fees. As per our GCA and SLA, the fees-related provisions in the contract itself must also include language providing for reimbursement of our firm’s reasonable out of pocket or incidental expenses, including, but not limited to, legal fees and tax or related fees incidental to processing charged directly or indirectly by governmental authorities, issuers, or their agents. In addition, our firm reserves the right to deduct amounts invoiced from the customer’s cash account and the right to charge interest on overdue amounts from the due date until actual payment at such rate as our firm customarily charges for similar overdue amounts.

Response: The State of Montana, Board of Investments, may agree to additional contractual terms required by the successful offeror if those terms do not conflict with Montana statute, administrative Rule, do not significantly increase the liability of the state, and are industry standard requirement. If the state cannot reach agreement with the highest scoring offeror, the state reserves the right to disqualify the offeror and award a contract to the next highest scoring offeror.


	46. 
	
	Appendix F – 5.4
	Withholding of payment in the event of breach. 

Q. We would like to delete this paragraph. We would like the provisions of section 9.1(b)(i) of our GCA and SLA to govern the rights and remedies of the parties in the event of a material breach (this includes a mutual 30-day cure period).

Response: State will not agree.

	47. 
	
	Appendix F – 6.1
	Access to records

Q. As per our enclosed agreements, the records which may be accessed must be identified as those records of our firm relating to the State’s accounts, which our firm will, upon reasonable written notice, allow the State reasonable access to during normal working hours.  
Response: State will agree to this part of the question.

However, our firm reserves the right to impose reasonable restrictions on the number of individuals allowed access, the frequency and length of such access, and the scope of the records made available and such restrictions shall not be deemed a refusal to allow access.

Response: State cannot agree.

	48. 
	
	Appendix F – 6.2
	Retention period

Q. As per our record retention policies, we generally retain records for a period of 6 years following expiration or termination of the contract (subject to any specific regulatory obligations that may apply).

Response:  State will agree.

	49. 
	
	Appendix F – 7
	Liability of the State for failing to comply with confidentiality obligations resulting from application of Public Disclosure Laws

Q. We would like to delete the language in the last paragraph of this section stating that “Contractor agrees not to pursue any action against the State for a violation or failure of the State to comply with any confidentiality obligation under this Contract that result solely from the application of the Public Disclosure Laws.”

Response:  State will not agree.

	50. 
	
	Appendix F – 8
	Assignment rights

Q. We would like to modify the first sentence of this paragraph in order to make the consent-to-assign requirement mutual to both parties. 

In addition, we would like to insert language substantially as follows at the end of the sentence: “except our firm may assign this Agreement without the State’s consent to (a) any Affiliate or subsidiary of our firm or (b) in connection with a merger, reorganization, stock sale or sale of all or substantially all of our firm’s custody business.”

Response:  State will not agree.

	51. 
	
	Appendix F – 8
	Responsibility for subcontractors

Q. We would like the ultimate contract to include language stating that, for the purposes of this contract/RFP, the term “subcontractor” shall not include Subcustodians, Securities Depositories, tri-party institutions, third party delivery services, providers of information (regarding matters such as pricing, proxy voting, corporate actions, class action litigation, credit ratings and similar information), proxy agents, local agents used to provide extraordinary services specifically requested by the State or other third party vendors that our firm uses in the ordinary course of business which are not engaged specifically with respect to performance of this contract.  

Response:  State will not agree.

	52. 
	
	General Note
	Liability for third party vendors

Q. Please note that, as per our GCA and SLA, our firm and its Subcustodians may use third party delivery services and providers of information regarding non-core custody services matters such as pricing, proxy voting, corporate actions and class action litigation and use local agents to provide extraordinary services such as attendance at annual meetings of issuers of Securities.  Although our firm will use reasonable care (and cause its Subcustodians to use reasonable care) in the selection and retention of such third party providers and local agents, it will not be responsible for any errors or omissions made by them in providing the relevant information or services.

Response:  State will not agree.

	53. 
	
	Appendix F – 9
	Indemnification of the State

Q. We would like to delete this provision.  This indemnity relating to bodily injury or death should not apply to a custodial banking services agreement. Additionally, as a general matter, our firm typically does not indemnify its customers. We do accept liability for direct damages incurred by the customer as a result of our firm’s negligence or willful misconduct. Nevertheless, in no event will our firm be liable for any indirect, special or consequential damages of any kind (including but not limited to lost profits) incurred by any person or entity.

Response:  State cannot agree.  Contract requires at least three (3) visits to the BOI site so this is required.

	54. 
	
	General Note
	Indemnification of Our Firm

Q. As per sections 3.1(a) and 7.1(c) of our GCA and sections 4.1(a) and 7.1(c) of our SLA, our firm (and its affiliates and agents) requires indemnification from the State/Board for all liabilities incurred by it as a result of: (i) any action or omission taken in accordance with any instruction of the State or its Authorized Persons (as defined in the GCA), (ii) our firm’s performance under the agreement (provided it has not acted with negligence or engaged in fraud or willful misconduct) or (iii) our firm’s status as a holder of record of the State’s Financial Assets (as such term is defined in the GCA).

Response:  State will not agree.

	55. 
	
	Appendix F – 10
	Insurance requirements

Q. Please note that our firm will not be required to maintain any insurance coverage specifically for the benefit of its customers.  Our firm will, however, provide summary information regarding its own general insurance coverage to its customer’s upon written request. To that end, please find attached hereto as Exhibit A, our exceptions to the insurance requirements set forth in Article 10, which, as modified, reflect our general insurance coverage.

Response:  State will not agree.

	56. 
	
	Appendix F – 11
	Worker’s Compensation compliance

Q. Please also see Exhibit A attached hereto for our exceptions to Article 11.

Response:  Proof of Worker’s Compensation compliance is required when work is performed in the State of Montana.

	57. 
	
	Appendix F – 15
	Intellectual Property/Ownership

Q. We do not believe that Article 15 is applicable to the custodial banking services anticipated under this RFP and would therefore like to delete this section in its entirety.   

In our view, the State/Board would retain ownership of its intellectual property, including any data, documents and other materials or information it provides to our firm, and our firm would retain ownership of, and proprietary rights in, any work product it generates or creates in the course of providing the services (including, but not limited to, any software and accompanying documentation), unless we specifically agree otherwise on a case-by-case basis.
Response:  State cannot agree.

	58. 
	
	Appendix F – 16
	Patent and copyright indemnity

Q. We would like to delete Article 16 in its entirety. As reflected in our standard agreements enclosed, our firm typically does not indemnify its customers for any claims, including but not limited to, intellectual property claims. As noted above, our liability as custodian is subject to our standard of reasonable care/negligence. We accept liability for the State’s direct damages to the extent such damages result from our firm’s negligence or willful misconduct.

Response:  State will need to have this in the contract if State is using software with licensing agreements.  If no software licensing agreements are required, State may consider removing this.

	59. 
	
	Appendix F – 17.1
	State’s right to terminate for convenience

Q. We cannot accept this provision as written and propose that section 9 of our GCA govern termination generally. As per section 9.1(b)(iv) of our GCA, if the State wishes to terminate the contract prior to the expiration of the initial term, the State may do so on no less than 60 days prior written notice and upon payment of a termination fee in an amount equal to six (6) times the average monthly fees paid during the six month period prior to the State’s notice of termination, or since the date our firm commenced providing services under the contract if that period is less than six months. In addition, we cannot agree to a waiver of remedies upon State’s termination. Termination of the contract will not affect any of the liabilities either party owes to the other arising under the contract prior to such termination.

Response: The State of Montana, Board of Investments, may agree to additional contractual terms required by the successful offeror if those terms do not conflict with Montana statute, administrative Rule, do not significantly increase the liability of the state, and are industry standard requirement. If the state cannot reach agreement with the highest scoring offeror, the state reserves the right to disqualify the offeror and award a contract to the next highest scoring offeror.



	60. 
	
	Appendix F – 17.2-17.3
	Rights of both parties to terminate for cause, subject to cure period

Q. As noted above, we would like to delete these provisions and propose that section 9.1(b)(i) of our GCA and SLA, as applicable, govern the termination for cause / cure rights for both parties. As per section 9.1(b)(i) of our GCA and SLA, either party may terminate immediately on written notice to the other party in the event that a material breach of the agreement by the other party has not been cured within thirty (30) days’ of that party being given written notice of the material breach.

Response: The State of Montana, Board of Investments, may agree to additional contractual terms required by the successful offeror if those terms do not conflict with Montana statute, administrative Rule, do not significantly increase the liability of the state, and are industry standard requirement. If the state cannot reach agreement with the highest scoring offeror, the state reserves the right to disqualify the offeror and award a contract to the next highest scoring offeror.



	61. 
	
	Appendix F –17.4
	· Termination for reduction of funding

Our firm’s reservation of rights  

Q. We understand that contract funds may be subject to state appropriations laws, however we cannot agree to a waiver of any remedies upon the State’s termination for any reason, including as required by law for failure to appropriate funds. The State’s obligation to pay our firm for any services rendered up to the date of any such termination, shall be without prejudice to any of our firm’s rights and remedies under the contract, at law or in equity, with respect to any liabilities of the State to our firm arising under the contract prior to such termination. 
Response:  State cannot agree.  

	62. 
	
	General note
	· General termination provisions

· Our firm’s right to terminate on short notice for credit reasons

Exit procedure

Q. We propose that section 9 of our GCA and SLA govern termination rights of the respective agreement. In addition to the exceptions noted above regarding Article 17, section 9 of our agreements contains additional provisions required by our firm, including the following:

9.1(b)(iii) – Our firm must have the right to terminate on sixty (60) days’ written notice to the State/Board in the event that our firm reasonably determines that the State/Board has ceased to satisfy our firm’s customary credit requirements.  9.2 – This provision sets forth the rights obligations of the parties upon the State’s termination and exit, including our firm’s right to deduct any amounts owing to it prior to delivery of the State’s assets (and, accordingly, the right to sell financial assets and apply the sale proceeds in satisfaction of amounts owing to it) and to be reimbursed promptly for all out-of-pocket expenses it incurs in delivering assets upon termination.    

Response:  State cannot agree.

	63. 
	
	Appendix F – 18.1
	Events of breach by Contractor – subject to our firm’s standard of care

Q. We cannot accept this provision as written because it imposes liability on our firm for acts or omissions in the absence of our negligence or willful misconduct. 

As per our GCA and SLA, we agree that a bankruptcy event would be grounds for termination by the State. However, the other bullet points in this section relate to the performance of the contract, which, as we’ve noted above, would be subject to our firm standard of reasonable care.  

All obligations of our firm under the contract, including, but not limited to, providing reports, shall be subject to our firm’s duty to act with reasonable care. Our firm will not be in breach of the contract with respect to any matter as to which it has satisfied its obligation of reasonable care.

Response:  State cannot agree.

	64. 
	
	Appendix F – 18.3
	Actions in the event of breach

Q. As per the note above regarding Appendix F, sections 17.2-17.3, we propose that section 9.1(b)(i) of our GCA and SLA, as applicable, govern termination for cause and cure rights for both parties. Said section 9.1(b)(i) provides both parties with equal recourse in the event a material breach by the other.

Response:  State cannot agree.

	65. 
	
	Appendix F – 19
	Force majeure

Q. We would like to modify this provision in order to make it consistent with the force majeure provision of our standard agreements, as follows: 

(i) We would like to understand why the State requires protection for force majeure. As the service provider, our firm requires force majeure protection to ensure that it can suspend its obligations as a result of an event of force majeure. However, the State’s principal obligation is to pay for services. Our contracts typically do not extend force majeure protection to customers.  

Response:  State will not agree to change.
(ii) The standard required for action taken to remedy the failure or delay shall be a “commercially reasonable efforts” standard. “Best efforts” is not acceptable.

Response:  State will agree.

(iii) We would like to delete the third and fourth sentences of this section which impose a five business day cut-off for providing notice of the force majeure event. Notice shall be provided within a reasonable time of the onset of the condition (as reflected in the third sentence).

Response: State may agree, however, the state may negotiate non-material changes with the highest scoring offerors that do not increase the liability to the state and do not conflict with Montana Statute or Rules.

	66. 
	
	Appendix F – 22.1
	Contract liaisons – reasonable efforts

Q. We would like to modify the last sentence to read: “The parties shall use commercially reasonable efforts to ensure that all work performed under this contract must be coordinated between the State's liaison and Contractor's liaison.”

Response: The State of Montana, Board of Investments, may agree to additional contractual terms required by the successful offeror if those terms do not conflict with Montana statute, administrative Rule, do not significantly increase the liability of the state, and are industry standard requirement. 
If the state cannot reach agreement with the highest scoring offeror, the state reserves the right to disqualify the offeror and award a contract to the next highest scoring offeror.

	67. 
	
	Appendix F – 22.2
	Notifications

Q. This provision should not apply to notices regarding termination which shall be sent via registered mail, overnight delivery services, such as Federal Express (FedEx) or United Parcel Service (UPS), etc., courier services or hand delivery to the address of the receiving party as set forth in the agreement unless notice of a new address is given to the other party in writing.

Response: State may negotiate non-material changes with the highest scoring offeros that do not increase the liability to the state and do not conflict with Montana Statutes or Rules.

	68. 
	
	Appendix F – 22.3 and 23.1
	· Identification/Substitution of Personnel; 

Meetings – Technical or Contractual Problems

Q. Matters covered in these sections are typically covered in a service level document or on a non-contractual basis, which would be our preference.

Response: The State of Montana, Board of Investments, may agree to additional contractual terms required by the successful offeror if those terms do not conflict with Montana statute, administrative Rule, do not significantly increase the liability of the state, and are industry standard requirement. If the state cannot reach agreement with the highest scoring offeror, the state reserves the right to disqualify the offeror and award a contract to the next highest scoring offeror.

	69. 
	
	Appendix F – 24
	Transition Assistance

Q. We would like to delete the last sentence of this provision and also point out that such transition assistance would be subject to the exit procedure provisions contained in section 9.2 of the GCA (as referenced above).

Response: State may agree to blending 9.2 of the GCA and State language but will not delete the last sentence of this section.

	70. 
	
	Appendix F –  25
	Governing law/venue

Q. We would like to replace Article 25 with section 10.8 of our GCA, which states that the contract shall be construed, regulated, and administered under the laws of the United States or State of New York, as applicable, and that the federal and/or state courts sitting in New York County would have exclusive jurisdiction over any lawsuit or judicial proceeding relating to this contract. 

We also require the State to waive any right to a trial by jury with respect to such actions, and to waive any right to claim immunity from suit or other legal process with respect to itself or its assets.

Response:  State will not agree.

	71. 
	
	Appendix F – 29
	Contract

Q. As noted above, the ultimate contract must be comprised of separate contractual documents covering global custody (GCA), securities lending (SLA) and all associated services (applicable riders) along with the agreed terms contained in the RFP. 

Response:  State will agree.

	72. 
	14
	3.2
	Q. Please provide a detailed holdings file in excel format including the following fields: Account Name, Account Number, Security Description, Security Type, Cusip Number, ISIN or Sedol, Market Value, and Country of Settlement.

Response: See Response #72 in attached Excel spreadsheet.  [Note that this list includes all securities including those held in commingled funds and thus does not represent the securities held directly via separate accounts which might be lendable.] 

	73. 
	15
	3.3
	Q. Please provide annual transaction volumes by country, with transaction type (buy, sells, maturities, redemptions, income, etc.) for all US and Non-US activity.

Response: See Response #73 in attached Excel spreadsheet.

	74. 
	14
	3.2
	Q. Related to Derivative positions, please provide the number of open positions and annual trading activity by instrument type (i.e. CRS, IRS, etc.).

Response: To date there are no derivative positions used directly in the separate account portfolios with the exception of currency forward agreements which are outlined in Appendix A, 2.4.

	75. 
	15
	3.3
	Q. Please describe your OTC pricing policy, i.e. how many sources do you require for each OTC? 

Response: The sources available for pricing over-the-counter securities should be sufficient so that adequate pricing coverage is obtained. If there are no available pricing sources for certain securities, the MBOI will work with the custodian to find a practical solution for pricing these, such as the use of a simple matrix price based on reasonable comparables. Currently there are only three such bonds. 

	76. 
	15
	3.3
	Q. How many counterparties do you typically deal with and how many clearing brokers do you have?

Response: We have an approved broker list of 14; these are typically the only counterparties.

	77. 
	15
	3.2
	Q. Please provide clarification about what services are expected around “middle office support including portfolio funding, defunding interim valuation, and other services.”

Response: This service requirement relates to the provision of appropriately trained, knowledgeable professional staff either separate or embedded within servicing team who will assist primary service team members with the coordination of asset movements and account setup related to funding and defunding events. This is often known as a custodian’s internal transition team – i.e. separate and distinct from transition management firms and trading/project management services such entities provide.

	78. 
	16
	3.3 (f)
	Q. Briefly describe the accounting & reporting requirements for the Residential Mortgages, In-State Loans and Direct Montana Real Estate portfolios.

Response: We will instruct all transactions on the loan programs and direct real estate assets.  Typical reporting would include income and position reporting.

	79. 
	16
	3.3 (f)
	Q. Please provide a schematic of the structure of the seven (7) investment pools.

Response: Please see attached, Response #79.  In addition, information regarding the seven (7) investment pools can be found in:  1) Appendix A, 2.4 of the RFP, 2) the MBOI FY13 Annual Report at http://www.investmentmt.com/content/AnnualReport/Docs/FY2013Final.pdf (specific investment pool information begins on page 9 of the Report); and 3) the MBOI website “Investment” tab at http://www.investmentmt.com/Investments/default.mcpx.

	80. 
	65
	Appendix B
	Q. Level of service required – confirm services are to match the current State Street Private Edge services in the pre-bidder meeting?

Response: Yes, services in support of existing and new private assets (see list of existing funds in Appendix B of the RFP) should include the services outlined in Sections 3.3.i and 3.8.1.c which are now provided via State Street Private Edge. 

	81. 
	65
	Appendix B
	Q. Pre-bidder meeting didn’t mention underlying holdings / portfolio company level reporting – is there an expectation for this?

Response: Underlying characteristics of holdings are reported for private equity only in terms of industry classification. Otherwise, fund level characteristics in terms of strategy, geography and investment vehicle (e.g. direct vs. fund-of-funds) are required. Look-through characteristics for real estate holdings include geographic location, property type, and leverage. Otherwise, fund level characteristics to be provided are in terms of strategy (e.g. core, value-added, timberland, etc.).

	82. 
	65
	Appendix B
	Q. Pre-bidder meeting didn’t mention online document storage required – is there an expectation for this?

Response: We would expect storage of all communication and reporting provided by the external managers.

	83. 
	65
	Appendix B
	Q. Are PE/RE cash flows to be updated daily within the Custody and Accounting platform, or monthly?

Response: Daily.

	84. 
	65
	Appendix B
	Q. Please confirm alternative investment volumes – total # of alternative investment lines, by type (fund or direct) and strategy (private equity, real estate, hedge fund, infrastructure, etc.)?

Response: This information is located in Appendix B of the RFP.

	85. 
	65
	Appendix B
	Q. Please confirm alternative investment structure – client investing structure, i.e. single or multiple investing/reporting legal entities?

Response: Investments are made via commingled funds – see the description of these in Appendix B of the RFP.

	86. 
	65
	Appendix B
	Please confirm alternative investment asset AUA.
Response: This information is located in Appendix B of the RFP.

	87. 
	65
	Appendix B
	In addition to use of State Street’s Private Edge, please describe current system/provider – what is the current support model for these alternative assets (staffing, functions, in-house, technology, outsourced via consultant/advisor in addition to State Street Private Edge as custodian)?

Response: The MBOI uses internal staff for the selection and underwriting of alternative asset managers and funds.  There is no specialty consultant utilized for the selection of either private equity or real estate managers/funds. No specialty software is utilized in-house for this purpose. 

	88. 
	65
	Appendix B
	Please confirm alternative investment vintage year – what is the distribution of investments across vintage years?

Response: This information is located in Appendix B of the RFP.

	89. 
	65
	Appendix B
	Please confirm nature of alternative investment historical data – is all historical cash-flow data maintained by the client or another 3rd party, and if so, in what form?

Response: Historical NAV and cash flow data is now maintained by State Street Private Edge. We do not know what, if any, proprietary software is used for this purpose by this vendor.  Data has been made available to us via Excel when needed.  We also ask that the Offeror provide a broad based alternative investment index against which the MBOI can compare its performance (see Sec. 3.8.1c).  We need to have a private equity index at a minimum that would allow for the comparison of IRR and investment multiple, and would prefer to also have a real estate index for private real estate funds (as opposed to simply a REIT index or the ODCE index of core real estate funds).

	90. 
	65
	Appendix B
	Is there an expectation of any data feeds or system linkages between our firm, MBOI, and any 3rd parties

Response: Servicing of private asset funds is to be provided by the custodian or its affiliate or a vendor sub-contracted by the custodian and acceptable to the client. Depending on your model for delivering such services, linkages may be needed.  

	91. 
	22
	3.6.4
	Q. With respect to the prime brokerage services discussed in Section 3.6.4, what is the amount of required financing to support the Board’s 130/30 portfolios and to what extent are securities borrowings satisfied via self-borrow?

Response: The 2013 average stock borrows balance was approximately $111.2 million of which 42.9% was self-borrowed.  On the financing side, self-financing was $52.8 million and memo pledges were $11.9 million.
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